
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, February 12, 2013                                                                       City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
**Note** A Special Meeting is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m.  

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
• Announcement of Volunteer of the Year and Commissioner of the Year (Council) 

 
RECEPTION 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  January 22, 2013 Special and  Regular Meetings (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Accept TIB Grant for Wax Road/240th Overlay (Akramoff) 

 
NEW BUSINESS - None 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
• Review the Performance of a Public Employee (RCW 42.30.110(1)(g))  

  
ADJOURN  
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400.  

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  February 12, 2013   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  JANUARY 22, 2013 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL 

MEETING AND REGULAR MEETING MINUTES. 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes  
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the January 22, 2013 City Council Special 
Meeting and Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
 
 

1 of 37



Unapproved Draft – January 22, 2013 Special Meeting and Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  February 12, 2013 
 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Special & Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, January 22, 2013 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
INTERVIEWS– 5:30-7:10 P.M.: 
The Council conducted interviews for openings on the Covington Parks & Recreation 
Commission.  Applicants interviewed included Laura Morrissey, Kollin Higgins, William Pand, 
Steven Pand, Troy McIntyre, and Lesley Schlesinger. 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, January 
22, 2013, at 7:25 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Karla Slate, 
Community Relations Coordinator; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Sara Springer, 
City Attorney; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION:   

• King County Councilmember Reagan Dunn gave his annual state of the county 
presentation. 
 

• Kevin Kiernan of King County Solid Waste Division gave a presentation on solid waste 
services. 
 

• Mike Heinisch of Kent Youth & Family Services provided an update on the proposed 
human services sales tax. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 

2 of 37



Unapproved Draft – January 22, 2013 Special Meeting and Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  February 12, 2013 
 
 

 2 

There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  January 8, 2013 Joint Study Session with the Planning Commission Minutes 

and January 8, 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 

C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #28766—28838, in the Amount of $318,593.46, Dated January 9, 
2013; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000989879-1000989894 and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1000990029-1000990029 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $151,933.99, Dated January 18, 2013. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded 
to approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Human Services Commission – Chair Haris Ahmad reported on the January 10 meeting. 

: 

 
Arts Commission – Chair Sandy Bisordi reported on the December and January meetings. 
 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Chair Steven Pand reported on the December and January 
meetings. 
 
Planning Commission – No report as December and January meetings were canceled. 
 
Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Jeff Wagner reported on the December 13 special 
meeting. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
1.  Consider Appointments to Parks & Recreation Commission. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
appoint Troy McIntyre to fill Position No. 7 on the Parks & Recreation Commission with a 
term expiring January 31, 2016.  Vote:  5-2 (voting yes:  Harto, Lanza, Mhoon, Snoey, and 
Wagner; voting no:  Lucavish and Scott).  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
appoint Laura Morrissey to Position No. 5 on the Parks & Recreation Commission with a 
term expiring January 31, 2016.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
appoint Steven Pand to Position No. 6 on the Parks & Recreation Commission with a term 
expiring January 31, 2016.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
appoint William Pand to Position No. 1 on the Parks & Recreation Commission with a 
term expiring January 31, 2014.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 

3 of 37



Unapproved Draft – January 22, 2013 Special Meeting and Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  February 12, 2013 
 
 

 3 

Mayor Harto recognized two outgoing commissioners, Bryan Higgins and Kollin Higgins, for 
their many years of service to the city. 
 
2.  Discuss Preliminary Solid Waste Contract with Republic Services. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Wagner recused himself from this item and left the Council Chambers. 
 
Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff introduced this item, and Consultant Jeff Brown with 
Epicenter Services gave the staff presentation. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Brown provided responses. 
 
Mr. Akramoff then provided some closing comments. 
 
3.  Approve Agreement for Storm Sewer Cleaning. 
 
Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, Mr. Akramoff provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
authorize the City Manager to execute an Agreement for Services with Northwest Cascade, 
Inc. for Storm Sewer Cleaning.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
4.  Report from Budget Priorities Advisory Committee. 
 
BPAC Chair Ed Cook gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and feedback. 
 
5.  Provide Staff Direction on King County Solid Waste Interlocal Agreement. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to agree with Option No. 1 regarding the 
Non-Binding Statement of Interest—that Covington is likely to sign the Amended and 
Restated Solid Waste Interlocal Agreement. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to change interviews for commissions from 
15 minutes to 20 minutes in length for each candidate. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
extend the meeting by 15 minutes.  Vote:  6-1 (voting yes:  Harto, Lanza, Lucavish, Mhoon, 
Scott, and Wagner; voting no:  Snoey).  Motion carried. 
 

4 of 37



Unapproved Draft – January 22, 2013 Special Meeting and Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  February 12, 2013 
 
 

 4 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Leroy Stevenson, 26838 116th Place SE, Covington resident, spoke regarding the proposed 
solid waste agreement, stating that he would not want mandatory garbage services. 
 
Mary Pritchard, 26103 197th Avenue SE, Covington resident, spoke regarding her opinion 
that the city should stop participating in Covington Days due to the waste of city resources.  Mrs. 
Pritchard also spoke to her appreciation of Councilmember Snoey’s comments regarding the 
possible human services sales tax, indicating her agreement that the city’s portion should be 70 
percent and county’s 30 percent.  Mrs. Pritchard expressed her appreciation to staff regarding the 
quick response in replacing the damaged holiday tree.  In addition, Mrs. Pritchard advised 
Council of her uncertainly on the proposed solid waste agreement and indicated she would make 
an appointment to discuss it with the Public Works Director. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:03 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

5 of 37



 

Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  February 12, 2013 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #28839—28947 and Voided Voucher #28895, in the Amount 
of $266,387.00, Dated January 22, 2013; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1001020160-
1001020172 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $142,410.50, Dated 
February 1, 2013. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment: Vouchers #28839—28947 and Voided 
Voucher #28895, in the Amount of $266,387.00, Dated January 22, 2013; 
and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1001020160-1001020172 Inclusive, Plus 
Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $142,410.50, Dated February 
1, 2013. 
 
 
 

6 of 37



7 of 37



8 of 37



9 of 37



10 of 37



11 of 37



12 of 37



13 of 37



14 of 37



15 of 37



16 of 37



17 of 37



18 of 37



19 of 37



20 of 37



21 of 37



22 of 37



23 of 37



 Consent Agenda Item C-3 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  February 12, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE TWO GRANT 

AGREEMENTS WITH THE WASHINGTON STATE TRANSPORTATION 
IMPROVEMENT BOARD. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 
1. Arterial Preservation Project Multiple Locations TIB # 3-P-204 (001) 
2. Arterial Preservation Project Multiple Locations TIB # 3-P-204 (002) 
 
PREPARED BY:  Dan Wesley, Construction Inspector/Public Works 
 
EXPLANATION: 
On August 24, 2012 the Public Works Department submitted an application to the Washington 
State Transportation Improvement Board for a grant to preserve arterials in two locations: 
1)  SE 240th Street between 180th Avenue SE and 196th Avenue SE 
2)  SE Wax Road between 193rd Avenue SE and 196th Avenue SE 
 
The Arterial Preservation Grant Program provides grant funds to eligible applicants for the 
purpose of preserving roads.  The city intends to overlay the two previously mentioned roads 
with new asphalt.  Overlaying the roads prevents them from deteriorating to the point where they 
would need to be completely replaced.   
 
On November 16, 2012 we were informed that we received the two grants listed above.  In an 
effort to minimize costs, the city plans to participate in King County’s 2013 Overlay program.  
Once the grant agreements are approved we may move forward with the process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not to enter into the Arterial Preservation Project and find other funds to overlay the subject 
projects or choose to not overlay the projects at this time and risk the roadways deteriorating 
beyond the need of just an overlay.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The total grant amount is 1) $289,697 (SE 240th Street), 2) $112,643 (SE Wax Road) for a total 
of $402,340.  The City’s portion, 1) $51,123; 2) $19,879 for a total of $71,002 will be expended 
out of the 821 Fund (CIP 1028 – Overlay) which currently has a balance of $44,000 and the 
remainder will come out of the CIP Reserve Fund Balance. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute two grant agreements with 
the Washington State Transportation Improvement Board. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

24 of 37



ATTACHMENT 1

25 of 37



26 of 37



27 of 37



28 of 37



29 of 37



ATTACHMENT 2

30 of 37



ATTACHMENT 2

31 of 37



ATTACHMENT 2

32 of 37



ATTACHMENT 2

33 of 37



ATTACHMENT 2

34 of 37



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date: February 12, 2013  
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

February 12, 2013 – City Council Regular Meeting  
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

35 of 37



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, February 26, 2013                                                                       City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER  
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
• Youth Art Month Proclamation – March 2013 (Art Commission Chair) 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  February 12, 2013 Study Session Minutes and February 12, 2013 Regular 

Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
C-3. Memo of Understanding for Joint Human Services and Funding Program (Beaufrere) 
C-4. Resolution Adopting a Vision, Mission, and Goals Statement (Matheson) 
C-5. Accept Carpet Replacement Project (Scott) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  February 13 Off-Site Visit. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  February 14 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  February 20 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Daniel Key:  February 7 and February 21 meetings. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  January 24 meeting.  

 
CONTINUED BUSINESS 
1. Continue Discussion and Consider Solid Waste Contract with Republic Services (Akramoff) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Accept Engineering Contract for Project Design (Akramoff) 
3. Approve City Manager Merit Goals for 2013 (Matheson)  
4. Covington Days Options (Slate) 
5. Ballot Measure Rules (Springer) 

Draft 
as of 02/07/13 

 

36 of 37

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


6. Inspections 101 (Hart/Meyers) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400.  

37 of 37


	02-12-13 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, February 12, 2013                                                                       City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent 1 Green Sheet 02-12-2013 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent 1 Attachment 01.22.2013 Sp for Interviews & Reg CC
	Consent 2 Green Sheet 02-12-2013 Vouchers Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent 2 Attachment
	Consent 3 Green Sheet 02-12-13 TIB Grant
	Consent 3 Attachment 1 02-12-13 TIB Grant - Att 1
	Consent 3 Attachment 2 02-12-13 TIB Grant - Att 2
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	02-26-13 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, February 26, 2013                                                                       City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




